

Why buy advice?

Deciding to pay for financial advice is a big step. It is normal to question yourself, especially as the results of this particular investment may not be apparent for years to come. This booklet is for anyone going through that decision making process. We hope you find it helpful, and please don't hesitate to ask if you have any questions or would like to talk to us in more detail about the advice service we can provide.

Contents

Getting advice - The basics	2
Understanding your needs	2
Setting your financial priorities	2
The need to invest for your future	3
Understanding investment	4
You need a plan before you need a product	5
Stand-alone products or an investment platform?	5
Doing it yourself - The problems	6
We're hard-wired to make mistakes	6
How psychology can hold us back	7
Some other practical disadvantages	9
Investing in an adviser - Why it's worth it	10
Helping you get what you want out of life	10
Taking care of you and your family	10
Saving you from yourself	10
Your adviser is well qualified to help	11
You agree the fees you'll pay upfront	11
You have access to protection if things go wrong	11

Getting advice - The basics

There are some financial steps that many of us can probably take ourselves without the need for professional advice, and with just a little research online. For example, write a simple will, put some money aside each month into a work pension (your employer is obliged to enrol you into their work pension automatically these days) and pay off debts. But as you start to accumulate assets and your situation potentially becomes more complex, it's natural to think about seeking advice. That might be to help with the financial implications of a specific situation such as retirement, the sale of a company, divorce or the birth of a child. Or it might be to seek reassurance that you are on the right track financially (and to make any necessary adjustments if you're not).

Understanding your needs

Whatever financial decisions you have to make, the first step towards making the right decisions for you is to establish a clear understanding of your financial needs.

These might be obvious – for example, you've taken out a mortgage and need insurance to help your family pay it off should you die. Or they might be less obvious – for example, you've accumulated some money over time but don't know how much you need to retire.

One of the most valuable things an adviser can do for you is to draw out a clearer vision of your financial future. They can help you understand what options you have around longer term issues, such as retirement, estate planning and looking after your family. If you have an obvious and immediate need, they can also help you to meet this, in the form of a financial product.

Talking to an adviser you may even find you have financial needs you've not yet considered. An adviser's professional experience can help to tease these out and address them for you.

Tip

Unless you understand your needs you won't know which direction to take and what your destination will be. It's impossible for you or an adviser to decide on the right solution for you without understanding your needs.

Setting your financial priorities

Once your financial needs are clear, the next step is to be clear on your priorities.

Depending on the amount of disposal income and investable wealth you have, maybe you'll be able to satisfy all of your financial needs. Or you might need to prioritise some over others. An adviser can use their expertise to help you work things through in this area, and develop a plan of action that suits your personal situation.

As a general rule, the first thing you would normally look to do is ensure that you and your family are protected in the event of misfortune, such as ill health or death.

Getting the right insurance cover might sound relatively simple. Many of us can go online and buy fairly straightforward policies such as holiday or motor insurance with ease. But where greater knowledge or technical expertise is required, an adviser can add value.

A good example is critical illness cover, which pays out a lump sum on diagnosis of a 'critical' (but not necessarily fatal) condition. Critical illness cover can be difficult to compare without expert

knowledge, because different companies use different lists of conditions as a basis for their cover. An adviser would be able to tell you if the reason one company might be offering cheaper cover is that it has a relatively narrow list of illnesses on which it pays out.

Income protection is another area where an adviser's knowledge can help. This is a useful insurance, especially for the self-employed, providing financial cover if you're unable to earn because of injury, sickness or (if you're employed) redundancy. There are rules, though, which limit how much cover you can have based on your income. Without knowing what these are you risk paying for a policy that doesn't pay out when you need it to.

It's not just about choosing the best value insurers. You may also benefit from an adviser pulling together just the right combination of insurances to meet your particular needs.

Tip

Always ask whether your adviser is choosing from the whole of the market or if they are contractually obliged to use certain ones.

The need to invest for your future

Beyond protection for you and your family, for many people the next priority is investing for their future, and in particular for their retirement.

The state pension provides a relatively modest income of £185.15 a week for anyone reaching state pension age now (if you qualify for the full payment). But if you're not already very close to state pension age, relying on it to be there by the time you retire is probably unwise.

The state pension age is gradually being pushed back by successive governments. People are also living longer and this is placing a financial burden on the state that future governments may need to address. We just can't be sure what the future holds.

Some people are still lucky enough to have company defined benefit (final salary) pensions. These have historically paid out reasonable pension incomes to those who have accrued longer periods of service with their employer. An example is the NHS pension scheme. Final salary pensions are becoming increasingly rare amongst private employers though, and even if you have one you may still not achieve the income you would like in retirement.

Outside these two types of pension, the onus is entirely on you as an individual to save and invest enough money for your income in retirement. Without a thorough understanding of when you want to retire, the life you want to live in retirement and the income you'll need to fund it, it's impossible to know what action you need to take to achieve your goals. So this is another area in which you can benefit from the support of an adviser.

Even once you reach retirement, you still need to make wise decisions with your money. The options open to you for taking retirement income range from the simplicity but reduced flexibility and expense of buying an annuity, to staying invested and taking income as and when you need it, with the ongoing investment risk associated with this.

Tip

For more information about taking an income in retirement, ask to see our 'Options in Retirement' booklet which summarises these.

Understanding investment

Someone could approach you and ask you to invest all of your savings in their new business venture. Most people would be uncomfortable with this. It's difficult to make an assessment of whether a new business will be successful with no track record and you would be putting all your eggs in one basket. It could make you very rich, but there's also a very good chance you will lose all of your money. And what if you wanted to sell your investment?

If you invest in an established, publicly listed company a lot more information is available. You can examine its financial track record and – compared to a private company - it is far easier to sell the shares when you want to. Even better, by investing in multiple publicly listed companies you are less reliant on the performance of just one business. Your investments are diversified. And you can diversify still more by spreading your investments across different types of industries and countries, reducing the risks you might be exposed to if there are problems in a particular geographical or business sector.

Establishing how much risk you are prepared to take with your money, and understanding what risk really means to you, is critical to the investment decisions you make. Some of the risks we've already touched on are:

- Capital risk. Losing your capital (the amount you originally invested)
- Liquidity risk. Not being able to find a buyer when you want to sell
- Volatility risk. Share prices going up and down based on performance and other factors
- Concentration risk. Concentrating your investments in a single market

And there are many others which might be relevant at different times of your life.

An adviser – perhaps working with other investment professionals - can help you to make sure your investment portfolio is set at an appropriate level of risk for your particular circumstances. That includes diversifying where your money is invested, so that a downturn in one particular market does not necessarily mean a downturn in all of your investments.

They will agree a solution for you that strikes the right balance between your financial needs and objectives, and the amount of risk you are prepared to take in achieving them.

Sometimes that means you'll need to compromise, and an adviser will be able to identify where that is the case and build it in to your plan. For example, you might need to take more risk, invest more money, or continue working a little longer to achieve your objectives. Equally, you might find you can take less investment risk than you'd first thought.

With so much information available online you might wonder if you can manage your own investments. If you are experienced, knowledgeable and confident that might work for you. But there are also some good reasons it might not be wise. We'll come back to these later.

Tip

A good adviser will act as a coach to help you meet your goals, managing you and your investments through more turbulent times and advising you against making rash decisions.

You need a plan before you need a product

We've already established that, when it comes to making good financial decisions, the most important thing to do is to get under the skin of your needs, goals and objectives.

Tip

A good adviser won't simply focus on a set of products or funds that you might need.

It might be concern around a pension or an investment which prompts you to contact an adviser in the first place. There are some very complicated products out there, with successive governments making constant adjustments to suit their political and economic agendas. For pensions there have been hundreds of changes in the past decade alone, some minor, some major. But the starting point for any advice should not be a product.

An analysis of your income, expenditure, assets and liabilities will allow an adviser to create a financial strategy or plan for you - an assessment of what income you will need to generate to match your expenditure over the longer term. It's an important part of the service an adviser provides for you. It helps you make much more informed decisions on how much you need to invest, what investment risks you need to take, and even when you might be able to retire.

In some cases you might not need a product, or the products you already have might be the right ones for the job. But where one or more is ultimately recommended by your adviser as part of implementing your strategy, it's likely to be from one of three basic groups:

- Insuring you against an event. Covering you and your family in the event of misfortune (for example, life cover, critical Illness cover and income protection cover)
- Helping you save and invest for the future. Tax efficient vehicles (or 'tax wrappers') through
 which you can invest, often in underlying funds. They all have different tax advantages and
 disadvantages you should be aware of. The most common examples are pensions and ISAs.
- Providing you with an income when you retire

Stand-alone products or an investment platform?

Although the starting point for any advice should not be a product, in the end relatively simple needs can often be met by stand-alone products such as a pension, ISA or life insurance. But where more active management of an investment portfolio is needed, you might want to consider using an investment platform.

A platform lets you buy and sell investments across your whole portfolio, including your pension, ISA and any investments you hold outside of a tax wrapper. It makes trading easier, as the services are online. You can often make changes to your whole portfolio at the same time, and you'll have an aggregated view of your investments and their value, typically updated on a daily basis.

Comparing different platforms, and their costs, can be complicated. At the least you'll need to have an idea of which tax wrappers you want to invest through, how much you want to invest and – potentially – how often you think you'll want to trade. Although all platforms should offer an investment range covering the most commonly used funds by investors, some have a narrower investment range than others (some only offer funds for example, while others might also let you invest in individual stocks and shares).

If you use an adviser all of this work is taken care of. Your financial plan would set out your high level requirements, followed by a recommendation of the products and investment funds needed to achieve that plan, including whether an investment platform would be suitable for you and, if yes, which one.

Tip

As part of their ongoing service, most advisers will also handle the practical side of implementing their recommendations for you, leaving you with little to do once the advice has been agreed.

Doing it yourself - The problems

So far, we've been focusing on the basics of investing and the ways an adviser can help you with these. Now it's time to turn things on their head and take a closer look at the reasons why, no matter how tempting it may seem, doing it yourself isn't always the wisest choice.

We're hard-wired to make mistakes

Everyone knows that if they buy something relatively cheaply and then sell when it has grown in value, there will be a profit. Growth. Successful investing. Easy. Who needs a financial adviser? But if it really is that easy, why are we not all rich?

Hindsight is a wonderful thing. If you look at a past performance graph for a fund or asset over time, it is easy to see when the best moments to buy and sell would have been. But if all you have is the price of a range of funds today, do you know which are going to go up, which are going to go down, and which will make the most money over the longer term?

Economic bubbles rely on investors getting it wrong. People see an asset increasing in value and want a share in that growth. So in they go. And the more who invest the higher the price of the asset goes (demand being greater than supply). This means still more people want to invest and on the upward cycle goes. Until someone, somewhere realises that this asset is now over-priced and decides to take their profit. The whole thing begins to crash like a stone. Everyone piles out at just the wrong time. Bought high and sold low.

Why do investors continue to follow this path? Because we are hard-wired to do so. The instinct to follow the crowd goes back to the plains of the prehistoric world, when it gave us a hunting advantage and helped us protect our young from predators.

This is just one example of how our psychology can actually hold us back from investing in a balanced way. There are many more, each proven by extensive research over the years.

How psychology can hold us back

We don't always interpret information well

What we see and hear can affect our view of how likely we think something is to happen. For example, we might believe that a particular natural disaster is more likely to happen than it actually is because of a frequently reported story across various media channels. Information overload (a real issue in the digital age) can also lead us to focus on incorrect or inappropriate inferences, unimportant data, or just get distracted by too much choice. Over-deliberation and sometimes misuse of information can result.

We tend to be over-confident

Anything can be explained with the benefit of hindsight, so we tend to become overconfident about the accuracy of our judgements and our ability to predict future events. That can include the likelihood of good events occurring or things working out well for us. For example, studies have shown that retirees tend to be overconfident that their income will cover them in retirement, underestimating how long people tend to live. In one study respondents estimated that 50% of people who retire at 65 in good health will live to 80, when the reality is more like 80% of men and 85% of women.

We don't plan enough for change

What we see and hear can affect our view of how likely we think something is to happen. For example, we might believe that a particular natural disaster is more likely to happen than it actually is because of a frequently reported story across various media channels. Information overload (a real issue in the digital age) can also lead us to focus on incorrect or inappropriate inferences, unimportant data, or just get distracted by too much choice. Over-deliberation and sometimes misuse of information can result.

We're inclined to procrastinate

If something – like starting a financial plan - feels a bit difficult and we can't see a short term benefit, we tend to put it off, even if we know it's good for us in the longer-term. Procrastination can lead to:

- Under-researching products or investments and giving up too easily
- Not reviewing things to make sure they're still right for you and giving value for mone
- Hanging on to products and investments you no longer need

There is little evidence that simply being aware of procrastination is enough to overcome it, and even tasks requiring very little effort can be postponed indefinitely.

We're tempted by instant gratification

This means we tend to make decisions based on what we want now, in the present, regardless of whether we suspect we might regret these choices later. We struggle to relate to our future selves, and the results for investors are often too little long term saving and too much debt.

We're not objective about gains and losses

We tend to set our own rules for what makes a gain or a loss, rather than assessing a particular outcome on its own terms, and we tend to feel the impact of a loss about twice as much as a gain of the same magnitude. So we place a disproportionate weight on losses. That can make our decision making unstable and varied. For example, we might sell our house for way under its market value, but still choose to view this as a gain because we sold it for more than we bought it for. Another way of putting this is that we often avoid situations where it can appear that we made the wrong decision, even when it was the right choice. With financial decisions you might sell or hold a particular fund at the wrong time for exactly those reasons.

We tend to stick with previous decisions

The success of 'default options' for pension fund choices and contribution levels are an example of this. There is also clear evidence that people fail to shop around for better annuity deals when they retire and stick with their pension provider by default.

Not only can psychological factors like these lead to poor decision making on our part, financial businesses understand them and can manipulate them through their marketing and sales processes.

For example, aggregator websites that you might use to compare and choose financial products may focus on specific criteria – typically price - leading you to ignore other relevant details and encourage a quick purchase that may not be right for you.

From this we begin to understand that, in many circumstances, the most significant factor in failing to reach a financial objective is likely to be our own behaviour; by procrastinating and not saving for retirement, by impulsively buying funds at the top of the market and selling when they have fallen, or by focusing on the one particular criteria that a marketing department wants you to focus on.

Tip

A good financial adviser will keep a laser-like focus on meeting your financial goals, steering you away from situations like these, where the psychological factors we've described above might otherwise cause you to make poor decisions and veer off track.

Some other practical disadvantages

As a single consumer navigating the financial markets on your own — even if you do have the confidence, knowledge and experience to feel you can give it a go — compared to an advice business looking after hundreds, maybe thousands of clients, you are always going to be at a natural disadvantage on the practical side of things.

Information disadvantage

Understanding the difference between noise and useful information is a challenge for even the most experienced investor. And we've already seen there are psychological factors at play that can exacerbate this. From market moves and macro comment to fund factsheets and platform charges, there can be a huge amount of detail to absorb if you want to keep up to date and ahead of the game. Advice firms have the depth of professional knowledge and experience to know what's important and what isn't, as well as access to data and research that may not be available to you.

Technical disadvantage

The pace of regulatory change has accelerated in recent years, particularly when it comes to pensions. The pension reforms of April 2015 provided extra flexibility for investors from the age of 55, but they also created additional complexity and pitfalls. A series of changes to pension allowances and the taxation of pension pots have added to the need to stay on top of the continually evolving regulatory landscape. Advice firms have access to up-to-the-minute regulatory briefings. Many also have people who specialise in regulation who can ensure advisers and their clients are kept abreast of developments.

Time disadvantage

Building, monitoring, reviewing and rebalancing a portfolio can be a daunting process. So many options, so much information to sort through, not to mention the administrative side of things. Add other elements of financial planning to the equation, such as tax, succession planning and dealing with various life events, and you're looking at a considerable time overhead. Advice firms can dedicate time and resources at a level that individuals are rarely able to. A growing number of advice firms outsource some of their work to specialists (such as investment management) both so they can provide the best possible service to their clients overall and spend more time on clients' financial planning needs.

Price and product disadvantage

As an individual, you are unlikely to be able to negotiate the best possible terms on the financial products and services you use. Advisers, acting on behalf of all their clients, may be able to negotiate better product terms or discounted charges. Some products or investments are not even released into the mainstream market. They may be made available solely through advisers as this makes it safer or easier to control volume. This could be a special mortgage product not available direct to consumers or a lower cost share class only available to financial institutions and advisers.

Investing in an adviser - Why it's worth it

Hopefully, by now you have a better understanding of some of the ways an adviser can help you, and the value they can add to managing your financial life, along with the challenges you may face if you try to 'do it yourself'.

In this final section we summarise the key benefits you can expect from investing in a financial adviser. We also outline some of the reasons you can be confident in the service you'll receive and, finally, the protection that's available to you in the unlikely event you do experience any problems.

Helping you get what you want out of life

Financial advice is often viewed as providing solutions to problems, or meeting specific needs. This is part of what it does, but it's also much more.

An adviser offering a financial planning service looks beyond short term problems and needs and looks at your situation more holistically. They'll find out what you really want from life and about your hopes and ambitions for yourself and your family.

It's not just about organising your finances, but about identifying where you are, where you want to go and building a financial roadmap to help you get there. Ultimately, it's about helping you get what you want out of life.

Taking care of you and your family

Financial advice is most commonly talked about in the context of investments, but the reality is that your needs go a long way beyond that.

Good advisers won't simply talk to you about the money you have to invest or the products you could invest in. Instead your wider circumstances and needs will come into play, to ensure that every step you take fits in with the overall plan to get what you want out of life.

That means your adviser will take tax into consideration, so that you invest tax-effectively, don't miss opportunities to save money and don't risk unnecessary tax charges. Your family needs are part of it too, including inheritance tax and your family's financial security, along with insurance, savings and later life issues such as long-term care and wills.

Saving you from yourself

Poor decisions are perhaps the biggest threat to successful long-term investing and we've already seen how human psychology means our decisions risk being driven by emotion rather than reason. Working with a third party professional can make a big difference here.

A financial adviser doesn't have the same emotional attachment to your investments. Their responsibility is to you, which means helping provide a clear vision of the future and a view of the bigger picture. In other words, keeping that laser like focus on your longer-term goals.

A good adviser will thoroughly understand your needs and objectives and how to meet them. There's a good chance they've been there before, know where the pitfalls are and recognise when emotions are getting in the way of good decision-making

Your adviser is well qualified to help

Under rules set by industry regulator, the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA), all financial advisers must be qualified to at least 'Level 4'. That's broadly equivalent to the first year of a degree and covers topics including personal tax, pensions and retirement planning and investment principles and risk. There are also Masters and Phd equivalents above that, and specific qualifications for areas such as mortgages, pension transfers and equity release.

Tip

If you're meeting a financial adviser for the first time it's always worth asking about the qualifications they have and what they mean.

You agree the fees you'll pay upfront

Your adviser will agree their fees with you upfront, and the services that will be covered for that. This is good business practice, so that you understand the cost of both the initial and ongoing advice that your adviser will give you. It is also something that the FCA requires advisers to do. You can usually agree for the fees to be taken out of your investments if you wish, rather than paid separately.

Advisers are no longer paid commission by investment providers, so you don't need to worry that they may be influenced by this.

You have access to protection if things go wrong

If you ever feel that your adviser gave you wrong or misleading advice, you can usually make a complaint to the Financial Ombudsman Service, at no cost to you. All advisers have to hold minimum levels of professional indemnity insurance, to cover complaints. And if your adviser firm is no longer around or able to meet a claim you may be able to access compensation from the Financial Services Compensation Scheme. You can find out more about this scheme and how much you could be covered for at www.fscs.org.uk

Tip

If you use an unregulated adviser these protections won't be available. They will often approach you through unsolicited telephone calls or mailshots. You should not take financial advice from anyone without first checking that they are authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. You can do this by checking the Financial Services Register at www.fca.org.uk And remember, if it sounds too good to be true, then it almost certainly is.

Our Contact Details

Hamblin-Martin Financial Ltd

12A The Bullpen, Bulrushes Farm Business Park, Coombe Hill Road, East Grinstead, West Sussex, RH19 4LZ

O: 01342 323224 M: 07825 908001

E: info@hamblinmartinfinancial.co.uk
W: www.hamblinmartinfinancial.co.uk



Hamblin-Martin Financial Ltd is an appointed representative of Best Practice IFA Group Ltd which is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Hamblin-Martin Financial Ltd. Registered in England No. 9630529. Best Practice IFA Group Ltd. Registered in England No. 0449063.